Joseph's Cottage T-33
20 West Street 1798-98
Easton, Maryland 21601

Joseph's Cottage was built about 1797-98 by Joseph Neall,
a cabinet maker, to be used as his shop and residence. The
one and one-half story frame building has two rooms per floor
and a central entrance. Walls and ceiling are covered with
boards inside; there is an enclosed corner stair. The steeply
pitched roof is complimented by the large brick exterior chimney.
Owned by the Talbot County Historical Society, the little house
was restored for the Bicentennial.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Joseph's Cottage is a one-and-a-half story frame house which has
recently been restored by the Talbot County Historical Society under the
direction of James Woolen AIA. The structure, now rented to a real estate
firm, is a part of the Talbot County Historical Society complex of
historic structures and stands in the southwest corner of their gardens.

The structure is two rooms wide with a central entrance, and flanking
windows. The roof is steeply pitched and finished with beaded, tapered
barge boards. There are two small attic windows in the north gable end,
one in the south gable.

The large brick chimney with exposed chimney-back is exterior to the
structure and has a corbelled cap and chimney breast,

Wide beaded weatherboarding covers the house. On the front elevation
the weather-boards are lapped, on the sides flush, Double corner boards
and a box cornice with crown and bed moldings emphasize the front facade.

Window and door frames on the front are beaded. The back band
molding is an ogee. Attic windows have plain frames. At each window is
a four over four sash and single batten shutter. The main entrance door
is also board and batten and reached by a small porch with three steps and
a simple railing.

On the first floor,walls and ceilings are constructed of wide unbeaded
boards.and there is a central four-panel door. The fireplace has a simply
molded |surround and plaster overmantle. Floors are wide yellow pine.

Opposite the front door is a corner stair enclosed in boards. It
le ads to the second floor which is also divided by a beaded board
partition.

A board and batten shed was constructed at the rear of the building
at the time of restoration. Well-scaled to the old house, it contains a
kitchen, Neighboring this building on the north is another early frame
building (T-419) also restored by Talbot County Historical Society. The
two buildings are enclosed by a picket fence with arrow head tops. Joseph's
Cottage is painted yellow with light brown trim and darker brown shutters
and door.

. The partition between the first floor rooms is of beaded boards

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Joseph's Cottage is one of the town's earliest structures and represents
a form of dwelling which may predate the brick Federal period structures
more commonly found here. This structure was throroughly researched in 1975
by Phoebe Jacobson. The major points of her report follows:

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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' LOT 116
(see T-32) z
Lot 11§\was leased in 1797 by¢Chamberlaine to Joseph Neall,” aldest son
Rogis

of Solomon and Ruth Neall., The Nealls were Birthright Friends and members of
Third Haven Monthly Meeting.2 Joseph, a bachelor,was by trade a cabinet maker.
He seems to have been a good workman and a careful planner. In 1798 he
made an agreement with Chamberlaine for the opening of a street ''to be known
W SIS SR A
as Cabinet Street"., Theinew street, 60 feet in width, lay to the south of
Lot 116. In the same deed Neall provided for a pathway to extend the 49.9
feet down the western edge of his property.3 He also bought a leasehold in
the lot below Cabinet Street leasing it a few days later to Samuel and Henry
Nichols, Jr.‘+ It was on 116, however, that Joseph made his home. By 1798
his establishment was composed of a one story wooden dwelling house, 20 x
16, with 5 windows, 40 x 16 inches; one window 30 x 16 inches and 2 windows
20 x 16. In addition there was a 12 x 12, five windowed kitchen, a 10 x 16
meat house and a large shop, 24 x 16. This 1798 description fits exactly the

5 the house
But at that time #¢ was situated on & half an

dimensions of 20 West Street.
acre facing Washington Street,

In mid September of 1800 Joseph Neall, at that time in his Lbth year, was
appointed by the Third Haven Friends to attend Quarterly Meeting. So he did.6
But on the lst of October he made his will. It was probated ten days later,
In it he left his interest in the lot where he then dwelt, with all improve-
ments, to his brother James. To this brother also he left his cabinet and

Joiners tools. The residue of his property went to his father.7 An inventory

of Joseph's personal &assets shows a considerable amount of furniture and wood

e
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of all kinds.8 This was far too much to have furnished a small housq,\ﬁ§k¢Fs ~et

too much to have belonged to a successful cabinet maker,

e James Neall was married to rachel Cox, a few months after Joseph's death.

The young couple must have moved into Joseph's little frame house near the

9

corner of washinrton and Cabinet Street. An Assessment in 1804 lists James

as living on 5/8 of an acre in a Dwelling house worth £40 with a kitchen,
a granary, a shop and a meat house, The total value of this was 2172.17.6.10
By 1210 the lease drawn between the widow of Samuel Edmondson, her new hus-

band and Margaret Leonard speaks of the large brick dwelling house in pos-
/"4.
ses=ion of James Neall.ll In April 1818 James Neall assigned his lease

hold to Jabez Calwell.lz. By this time the Neall property had increased greatly
be ,s

in value. It included.the three story brick house,a two story frame shop with
a back addition, a brick kitchen, a meat house, a stable carriage house, a

plank shed, a shed kitchen, a milk house, a necessary and a frame dwelling
13

house. cabez Caldwell's assessment for 1826 furnishes an insight into the

"long Journey' of Joseph Nealfg dwelling house, It describes Caldwell's
property as containing a 3 story brick house with a brick kitchen. A meat

house, a frame shop. Then it continues with these words '"on West Street

frame dwelling house $€O kitchen 88".lu This would imply that the house had

St
noasmiaaTon IR

been moved from the, side of 116 to the west Street side. Tenants for these
establishments were listed as D. Ring and Messrs. [?] Vinson. Who occupied
which dwelling is not clear. This 1826 Assessment also indicates that a
frame dwelling house, occupied by negroes stood on a corner of Washington and

Cabinet Street, but it does not designate the corner.

In 1833 Joserh Caldwell administrator of Jabez sold the leasehold on

=y

Lot 116 to Jokn Goldsborough ~ and from the heirs of John Goldsborough

the western part of tne Lot ~=-: into the rands of James McNeil in 183?.10



During all these years between 1797 and 1837 while Lot 116 passed into
McNeil hards the history of the Southen half of Lot 117 was also being re-
corced.. Zleanor Zjrondson after several years of widowhood married Henry

o Yo rTREEN

Covey, a farmer. She had sold the upper portion of 117 in 1804 to Tristram

o~ St ,J“n.c\«n
Needles; the lower portion was conveyed soon after Zdmondsorfs death at

public auction to Caleb Stanfield.l7

That house was then occupied by a
Richard Stanfield. In 1810 Caleb Stanfield assigned the lease to a relative,
Margaret Leonard. At the time of the latter cale it was rented by John
Dawson. This house on this lower portion of the lot 117 faced VWashington
Street, If there were a house on the West Street side of the lot at this
time it would have to have been tenanted by successors to Thomas Bradshaw
or Philemon Willis. The Sanborn Insurance maps of 1896 show nothing on
the washington Strcet side of lower 117. The house that stood there,
once occuvpied by John Brice, and latter by the Stanfieldg,must have come
down before that date.

There is a very long period between the last record of the site of
#20 in 1510 when it came into possession of Margaret Leonard and the next
transaction in 1877 when it appears as a part of the estate of James Mc
Neil.18 This simply means that one or more vital instrument have been
nissed, From records available it would seem that McNeil possessed not

only Lot 116 on which stood the big brick house and the little frame,

but also the southern part of 117 where #20 stands today. A chancery

suit involvirny his heirs introduced in May of 1870 states that McNeil had



owned one frame dwelling house on the northeast corner of West Street and
Cabinet Street then occupied by James Colgan. The depositions taken on
its value judged that to be between $70C and 5500. Vas this the frame
house moved by Jabez Caldwell to the “West Street side of Lot 116 end later
moved afain a few yards up the street, possibly by James McNeil or by
wWilliam Parrott?19 However it got there, #20 West today by all measure-
ment, was in 1768 the dwelling house of Joseph Neall, cabinet maker,

The Historical Society structure was erected by Joseph's brother James
Neall, also a cabinet maker., The origin of %18 is unknown. Can we say

it might have beern erected by Samuel Edmondson?
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Talbot County Land Records 34, f. 176

Talbot Countv Chancery Records 13, f, 210

Ta.bot County Land Records 84, f, 95




RAPHS MAY BE ADDED ON SHEET OF SAME SIZE

i

SUPPLEMENTAL INFOKMATION AND PHO

. STATE Maryland HISTORIC AMERICAN BUILDINGS SURVEY

COUNTY Talbot INVEMTORY

TOWN Easton VICINITY

STREETNO. 20WEst Street 2 NAME T‘33
paTe or PERIOD 18th C., (?)

ORIGINAL OWNER
ORIGINAL USE

PRESENT OWN ER
PRESENT USE Dwelling BUILDER

Dwelling styLe Colonial
ARCHITECT

waLL consTRucTioNn Clapboard and tin |3 FOR LIBRARY OF CONGRESS USE
NO. OF sTORIES 1 1/2 :

-NOTABLE FEATURES, HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE AND DESCRIPTION OPEN TO PUBLIC no

This small cottage with its very steeply pitched A-roof has the
appearance of being very o0ld,; it is 3 bays wide and 2 deep.
There is a central door and the windows are all 6/6. There are
2 tiny windows in the attic level at the gable ends. There is an
enclosed chimney within the left end wall. The very steep pitch
of the roof of this house gives it a medieval quality. It is very
attractive and possibly quite old. At present it is in very bad
condition and may possibly be torn down. If it does date from the
18th century it should be saved.

5. PHYSICAL CONDITION OF STRUCTURE  Endangered Interior Exterirvery bad
@ 6. LOCATION MAP (Plan Optional) 7. PHOTOGRAPH
2. PUBLISHED SOURCES {(Author, Title, Pages) 9. NAME, ADDRESS AND TITLE OF RECORDER

INTERVIEWS, RECORDS, PHOTOS, ETC. .
Paul A. Brinkman

DATE OF RECORC August 29, 1967
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1-33
Joseph's Cottage ,
(Joseph Neall House) ~
20 West Street St Aubins
Easton Quad, 1942, PR <1974 Heights.
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